
PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, July 11, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
Materials: June 13, 2019 Minutes  
1. Call to order –Chair Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for June 13, 2019 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members  
6. Update on Recycling Center  
7. Purchase of Elliptical Exercise Machine from Polk County Employee by Sheriff’s 

Office Employee Wellness Committee using Employee Voluntary Payroll 
Deduction Funds 

8. Department Annual Reports from Administrator Osborne 
9. Presentation/Review of 2018 Audit Results 
10. Update on Memorandums of Understanding 
11. Resolution No. 28-19: Resolution in Support of Telecommuting Opportunities 

and Telecommuter Forward Certification 
12. Discussion Regarding Clam Falls Dam Offer and Previous Resolution 77-18: 

(adopted 10/2018) Resolution Concerning Offer of Northwestern Wisconsin 
Electric Company  to Transfer Clam Falls Dam 

13. Update on Claims and Pending Litigation Against the County 
14. Update and Discussion Regarding Green Whey 

 
The Committee may convene in closed session on matters noticed under #13 
and #14, as follows: 
   

CLOSED SESSION -(Minutes separate and under seal) 
 
Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute § 19.85(1)(g), the Committee may convene 
in closed session for the purpose of conferring with legal counsel for Polk 
County who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 
adopted by the Committee as a recommendation to the County Board on 
with respect to anticipated litigation in which the County is or is likely to 
become involved. 
The Committee may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 
19.85(1)(e) for conducting specified public business that has competitive 
or bargaining reasons that require a closed session.  Specifically, Green 
Whey is currently in receivership and has substantial past-due property tax 
and interest and penalties.  There are entities that have indicated an 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

interest in purchasing the property and negotiating repayment of the tax, 
interest and penalties due to Polk County.  Having discussions with the 
potential purchasers in closed session will allow the County to have greater 
bargaining power when it comes to any potential repayment agreement.  
 
Following the closed session the Committee will convene in open session to 
make an announcement on matters considered in closed session and to 
take up, consider and act upon in open session those subject matters 
noticed herein for consideration or action in open session. 
 

15. 2019 Work Plan Development/Updates 
16. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
17. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to 
attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 hours in advance 
of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 
 
    



1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 
                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, June 13, 2019 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters @ 10:00 a.m. 
Members present: 
 

Attendee Name Title Status 

Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 

Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 

Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 

   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Nick Osborne, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, 
Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Chad Hoag, Child Support Manager; Chad 
Roberts, Chief Deputy; Maggie Wickre, Finance Director; Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner; Malia 
Malone, Corporation Counsel; Supervisor Route, and member of the press.   
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda  
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the amended agenda as published. Motion 
(Jepsen/Nelson) to approve the amended agenda. Chair Masters declared that closed session items 
would be moved after #7 on the agenda. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to approve 
the amended agenda as published. Motion to approve the amended agenda carried by unanimous voice 
vote.   
  
Approval of Minutes   
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the May 9, 2019 meeting as published. 
Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to approve the minutes. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to approve the minutes of the May 9, 2019 meeting carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment – No Public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members – No information was 
received by the committee from Supervisors not seated as committee members.  

The committee received an update regarding the Recycling Center financial analysis from Highway 
Commissioner Norby. The recycling center is receiving more recyclables than current staffing can 
handle. Center has been subsidized with tax levy dollars to break even partially due to decreases in 
commodity pricing (for recyclables sold) and decreased state aid. Other issues impacting the recycling 
center include staffing shortages, equipment breakdowns, aging infrastructure, and economic impacts.  

The committee received an update regarding the Lime Quarry financial analysis from Highway 
Commissioner Norby. Lime Quarry has been in existence since the 1930’s. The committee received 
financial statistics and information from Commissioner Norby who presented a map plotted showing 

  



2 
 

customers/locations who purchase lime quarry products. A majority of the lime products go to 
Cooperatives.  

Chairman Masters called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 

Motion (Jepsen/Johansen) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis pursuant to 
Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(e) and 19.85(1)(g) noticed on the amended agenda.  Chairman 
Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to convene in closed session carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  

** Closed Session 10:15 a.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 

Chairman Masters asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors: Brian 
Masters, Chris Nelson, Dean Johansen, Russ Arcand, and Larry Jepsen. Also present were County Clerk 
Sharon Jorgenson, Administrator Nick Osborne, Deputy Administrator Andrea Jerrick, Finance Director 
Maggie Wickre, Chief Deputy Chad Roberts, Child Support Manager Chad Hoag, Highway Commissioner 
Emil Norby, Corporation Counsel Malia Malone and Supervisor Doug Route. 

*Reconvened in Open session: 10:47 a.m.  

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding consideration and identification 
of County Board Priorities in General Government. Committee received information from Corporation 
Counsel Malone regarding Child Support and Corporation Counsel departmental priorities. Supervisor 
Nelson noted concern regarding spending/budgeting for upgrades/repairs at the aging recycling center 
with outdated systems and subsequent costs to operate the center. 

The committee engaged in discussion regarding the Clam Falls Dam. Chairman Masters provided 
information regarding expenditures on Atlas, Apple River, and DD Kennedy dams.  Federal grant funding 
is no longer available for improvements on dams. The committee received an update from 
Administrator Osborne regarding recent conversations with representatives from Northwestern 
Wisconsin Electric and Renewable Energies. Representatives from NW Electric and Renewable energies 
will be present and provide information and updates at the July County Board meeting. 

The committee discussed recommendations regarding consideration of Resolution No. 27-19: Resolution 
to Amend 2019 Budget to Incorporate Carry-Forward Funds from 2018.  Chairman Masters called upon 
Administrator Osborne to provide information regarding the resolution to the committee. Administrator 
Osborne noted tentative amounts needed on line 49 for the General Fund Balance transferred to the 
Department of Children and Families and on line 53 for the Highway Facility Project (transferred to 
General Fund Undesignated Fund Balance) would be $688,337.00 and $907,527.00 respectively.  

Chair Masters called for a motion regarding Resolution No. 27-19. 
Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to recommend Resolution No. 27-19 to the County Board for passage. 
Motion (Masters/Johansen) to amend Resolution No. 27-19 to add the following amounts to the 
Resolution after line 34: 
Recycling: $22,000 for 2018 Recycling Air Handler Project which is in process of being replaced. 
Buildings: $76,000 Government Center Security Project which needs to be carried forward. 
Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion to amend Resolution No. 27-19.  
Motion carried by majority voice vote with one opposed. 



3 
 

Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to approve and recommend Resolution No. 27-19 as amended. Motion to 
approve and recommend Resolution No. 27-19: Resolution to Amend 2019 Budget to Incorporate Carry-
Forward Funds from 2018 (as amended) to the County Board for passage carried by majority voice vote 
with one opposed.  

The committee received information and a PowerPoint presentation from Deputy Administrator Jerrick 
regarding the remaining items to be addressed from the 2017 work plan and the status of the items, as 
well as progress made regarding the following items: 

Government Center Security 
Paper reduction – paperless initiative 
Cash Handling 
Review of lease structure 
Customer Service 
Funding of outside agencies 
Capital Improvement Planning 
IT Developments and innovation 
Employment issues and trends and succession planning  
Accounts Receivable 

Work plan updates/development: -Ongoing items 

IT Developments and innovation/Paper Reduction/paperless initiative 
Government Center security 
Customer Service- August?  
Capital Improvement Planning –(budget time) 
Funding of outside agencies – August 
 
Items for next agenda:   

Next meeting: July 11, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m.  
Recycling Center updates 
Update on Memorandums of Understanding 

Adjourn 
 
Chair Masters called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Johansen/Nelson) to adjourn. Chair Masters 
called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Meeting 
adjourned 12:07 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  





















GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
2019 WORK PLAN 

Date Scheduled Agenda Items Program Evaluation and Upcoming 
Issues 

January Finalize 2019 Work Plan  

February   

March   

April   

May  Consideration of County Board priorities 
in General Government 

June Financial Analysis Lime Quarry 

Financial Analysis – Recycling Center 

 

July Annual reports 
Annual Audit Results  
Recycling Center Updates/Follow-up 
Update on MOU’s 

Governor’s Budget and impact on 
government programs 

August Review and recommendations on fee 
schedule 
Funding of Outside Agencies 
Customer Service  

 

September Annual budget review – County Board 
Budget development/recommendation 

Capital Improvement Planning 

 

October Annual budget and budget amendment 
recommendations 

 

November Budget technical amendments  

December Develop 2020 work plan  

 

Ongoing Work Plan Items 

Paper Reduction/IT Developments and Innovation 
Government Center Security        


